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UNITED STA1'ES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DJ:STRIC'l' OF CALIFORNIA 25-cr-04519-CAB 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Case No . ., . ............,,,-..~ 
I 

Plaintiff, PLEA AGREEMENT 

v · (DEFER.RED ENT:RY OF JUDGMENT) 

BJS & T ENTERPRISES, INC. (1), 
dba SAN DIEGO POWDER & 
PROTECTIVE COATINGS, 

7 Defendant 

18 

19 IT IS HEREBY AGREED between the plaintiff, UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

20 through its counsel, Adam Gordon, United States Attorney, and Michael 

21 A. Deshong and Henry F.B. Beshar, Assistant United States Attorneys, and 

22 defendar.t, BJS & T ENTERPRISES, INC. dba SAN DIEGO POWDER & PROTECTIVE 

23 COATINGS (hereinafter, "SDPC" or "Defendam:" l, with i:..he advice and 

24 consent of Jeremy Warren, counsel for defendant, as follows: 

25 / / 

26 / / 

27 / / 

28 I I 
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1 

2 

:r 

TBE PLEA 

3 A. 

4 

THE CHARGE 

Defendant agrees to plead guilty to a one-count Information 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

charging defendant with: 

B. 

Beginning on a date unknown and continuing up to and including 
March 27, 2025, within the Southern District of California, 
defendants BJS & T ENTERPRISES, INC., dba SAN DIEGO POWDER & 
PROTECTIVE COATINGS, and KARLI BUXTON engaged in a pattern and 
practice of hiring, recruiting, and referring for a fee, for 
employment in the United States, aliens, ir.cluding [table of 
aliens omitted] knowing the aliens were unauthorized aliens 
with respect to such employment; in violation of Title 8, 
United States Code, Sections 1324a(a) (1) (A) and (f). 

AGREEMENT NOT TO PROSECUTE ADDITIONAL CHARGES OR INDIVIDUALS 

In exchange for Defendant's plea of guilty, the United States 

agrees not to prosecute additional criminal charges under Title 8 of 

15 the United States Code, based solely on the same conduct described 

16 

17 

18 

herein, against Defendant or ta prosecute Defendant's owners, 

directors, managers, or supervisors fer the same conduct described 

herein unless Defendant breaches this plea agree!llent in any way, 

19 including but not limited to full and timely payrnent of the forfeiture 

20 or fine described herein, or if the guilty plea entered pursuant to 

21 this agreement is set aside for any reason. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

C. WAIVER OF CERTAIN RIGHTS 

In consideratian of the concessions made by tl:.e Government pursuant 

to this Agreement, Defendant knowingly waives all its rights to a speedy 

trial ~i.:rsuant to the Sixth A,'Tlendmem:. to the United States Constitution, 

Title 18, United States Code, Seccion 3161, and Federal Rule of Criminal 

Procedure 48 (b). 

II 
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l D. FORFEITURE 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

SDPC consents to the forfeiture allegations of the Information and 

agrees the attached Forfeiture Addendu.m shall govern forfeiture in this 

case and the Forfeiture Addendum is incorporated into this Agreement. 

SDPC understands that full and timely payment of forfeiture is a material 

part of the agreement and failure to comply with its terms is a material 

breach of the agreement. Defendant further agrees and understands that 

upon payment of the forfeiture such forfeiture is complete and final as 

to the Defendant even if the case is subsequently dismissed. 

E. PACKAGE DISPOSITION 

This p1ea agreement is part of a "package" disposition. In order 

£0:r: defendant to receive the benefit of this agreement, codefendant 

KARLA BUX'l'ON (D2) must p1ead guilty at the same time. See Section VI.E. 

be1ow. 

II 

AGREEMENT TO DEFER PROSECUTION 

It appears that the interest of the United States, SDPC's interests, 

and the interests of justice will be served by deferring prosecution of 

this offense for a period of 24 months (the "Deferral Periodu), provided 

SDPC complies with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including 

the satisfaction of the terms of the Forfeiture Addendum. If SDPC 

22 complies with the terms and condi -cions of this Agreement, the Uni-ced 

23 States agrees to dismiss the charge in the Information and agrees not 

24 to prosecute Defendant for any conduct: described in this Agreement. 

25 Within thirty days of the expiration of the Deferral Period (or earlier 

26 if the United States, in its sole discretion, determines to do so), the 

27 United States shall seek dismissal of ,:he one-count Information. 

28 However, should the United States de~ermine that Defendant, a' 

3 
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1 execution of this Agreement and prior to the end of the Deferral Period, 

2 has violated the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the United 

3 States may proceed with prosecution. The parties agree that neither chis 

4 Agreement nor the Information constitutes a final adjudication on the 

5 merits of any charges. 

b 

7 E'e;.::-iod shall c:ommer:ce u,?0:: c::hE entry CJy t:-:e Ccur~ of an order approving 

9 .Z\greoment throu:;.in :JH:, en.:1 cf the De:erral i=eriod from consideration 

10 under the Speedy T·:ri32. Act., 18 U~3.C:. § 3lEl i,hJ (21 .. F.rom tfte effec::ive 

14 

s ubr:-ti ~ t:. i r:g cf ita I-9 

l 8 

19 

20 f)ef>2-nci3.r:t shall ,::cn:.1..r.nt the empl:::,yment 

21 

4. 

24 :'u.1_:_. 

4 
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2 subject co prosecut~cn, at t~e sole discretic~ of ~he Unjted States, for 

3 any federal cri~inal violation of which ch8 United States has knowledge, 

4 including, buc nG~ li~lted to, :he charge in tje lnformation described 

5 in Par a graph 1 and a:: y other c~iarges '-:.r.a L a;:· 1. se from the -conduct se :_ 

7 or the SoGthern District cf ca:ifornia or a~y ~ct1er appropriate ve~ue. 

8 Determination of wne~her Defe~dant has breac~ed th~s Agreement and 

9 whetner LO pursue prosecutio~ of Jefendan~ shal: be i~ the UniLed States' 

1 CJ sole discreL ion.. r~ny such prc,secutior1 may he ~,rerrti sed or1 in fc,rrna ti on 

12 L~ the conjuc: described in this Agreesent 01 relating co conduc~ known 

~o tne United States prior t~ t~e jate en whic~ this Agreement was signed 

14 chal .snot time-bar~ed by the ap?l1cable stat~te ~f l1~itations OG the 

15 da-::.e the signinq cf thjs 

nct:wi tl,s::.arid 1 ng 

17 signing cf this Agreement a~d tne sxp:r3ti~n of t~e ~eferral Per ad olus 

Uefene1ant agrees r_t1at the 

19 statute ~f limitatio~s wit~ respect c~ any sJc~ pr~secutio1: ch~t ·~ not 

that the statuce 

23 

28 fi.2S ,,-i:::;la.•.=.,:i \ar;v 

' J 

l 
,I - ··-' "" 

.j 
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1 provision of Lhis Agreenent, an extension or extensions of the Deferral 

2 Period may be imposed by the United States, in its sole discretion, for 

3 u9 to a total additional time period of 12 months, without prejudice. 

4 Any extension of the Agreement extends all terms of this Agreement. 

5 In the event that the United States determines that Defendant has 

6 breached this Agreement, the United States agrees to provide Defendant 

7 with written notice of such breach prior to instituting any prosecution 

8 or extension of the Deferral Period resulting from such breach. Within 

9 thirty (30) days of receipt of such r:otice, Defendant: shall have the 

10 opportunity to respond to the United States in writing to explain the 

11 nature and circumstances of such breach. The United States shall consider 

12 Defendant's explanation in determining whether to institute a 

13 prosecution or extend the Deferral Period. For the purposes of this 

14 Agreement, Defendant shall be deemed to have received notice as of the 

15 day written notice is mailed, sent, or otherwise transmitted to the last 

16 known mailing or e-mail address of Defendant or any person who has 

17 agreed to accept service of such notice on Defer:dant • s behalf or the 

18 mailing or e-mail address of undersigned defense counsel for Defendant, 

19 II 

20 NATURE OF TBE OFFENSE 

A. ELEMENTS EXPLAINED 21 

22 The offense to which defe~dant 1s pleading guilty has the following 

23 elements: 

24 1. 

25 
~, 
L, 

26 

27 

28 

Defendanc hireci, recruited, or referred for a fee, aliens 
for employment in the United Stat:es; 

The aliens were not 
residence or lawfully 
States; 

F ,) 

lawfully admitted 
authorized to work 

for permanent 
in the United 

SDPC Rep. Initials 

Case 3:25-cr-04519-AHG     Document 8     Filed 11/26/25     PageID.14     Page 6 of 23



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

1 9 

20 

21 

22 

3 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

4. 

Defendant knew the aliens were not lawfully admitted for 
permanent residence and that they were not otherwise 
lawfully authorized to work in the United States; 

Defendant hired the unauthorized aliens as part of a 
pattern or practice of employing unauthorized aliens. 

To convict a business organization of a criminal offense based on 

the conduct of an employee or agent, the United States must prove (1) 

that an employee or agent acting within the scope of his or her authority 

at the organization committed the offense, and (2) that the employee or 

agent was acting in part ~o benefit the organization. 

B. ELEMENTS UNDERSTOOD AND ADMITTED - FACTUAL BASIS 

Defendant has fully discussed the facts of this case with defense 

counsel. Defendant has committed each element of the crime and admits 

that there is a factual basis for this guilty plea. 

are true and undisputed: 

The followi~g facts 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

BJS & T ENTERPRISES, INC., dba SAN DIEGO POWDER & 
PROTECTIVE COATINGS ( "SDPC") , operates from multiple 
warehouses located in El Cajon, California, in the 
Southern District of California. 

At all relevant times, co-defendant Karli Buxton and John 
Washburn (charged elsewhere) held management positions 
at SDPC and acted as agents of SDPC, acted within the 
scope of their authority at SDPC, and acted for the 
benefit of SDPC. 

At some point af~er 2019, Washburn began using an 
employee to recruiL others to come work at SDPC. Washburn 
was told these individuals had ~'bad paperwork," which 
meant they did not have valid documentation authorizing 
them to work in the Uni~ed States lawfully. 

Beginning in 2023, co-defendant Karli Buxton began act 
as the Human Resources Manager for SDPC. In that 
capacity, Buxton reviewed doctLments to verify citizen 
and employment eligibility of prospective employees at 
SDPC and assisted new employees wich completing their W-
4 tax documents. 

During their emplcymer:t at: S:JPC, Washburn and Buxton 
became aware that certain prospective employees, who were 
aliens and not citizens of the United States 

7 
SDPC Rep. Initials 

Case 3:25-cr-04519-AHG     Document 8     Filed 11/26/25     PageID.15     Page 7 of 23



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

0 

21 

22 

23 

24 

presenting fraudulent documents, such as fraudulent 
Lawful Alien Permanent Resident cards and Social Security 
cards, as proof of their eligibility to work in the United 
States. Washburn and Buxton hired the prospective 
employees and/or allowed t.hese individuals to work at 
SDPC. 

6. The prospective employees hired by SDPC, including the 
unauthorized aliens listed in the Information, were in 
fact aliens who were not lawfully admitted for permanent 
residence and who were not lawfully authorized to work 
in the United States. 

7. Certain of SDPC's management knew the prospective 
employees, including the unauthorized aliens listed in 
the Information, were not lawfully admitted for permanent 
residence and were not lawfully authorized to work in the 
United States. 

8. For example, when SDPC needed to send employees to work 
at secure locations or locations that required additional 
employee screenings, such as military bases and ports of 
entry, SDPC's management avoided sending employees that 
they knew were unauthorized aliens to those locations. 

9. The unauthorized aliens working at SDPC, nevertheless 
frequently had access to military equipment, such as 
components to a submarine or other aquatic vehicles used 
by the United States Navy. 

10. Between approximately 2019 and March 27, 2025, SDPC 
engaged in a pattern and practice hiring unauthorized 
aliens to perform work on behalf of SDPC and at least two 
managers at SDPC knew the aliens being hired by SDPC were 
aliens without legal authorization to work in the United 
States lawfully. 

11. SDPC earned indirect and direct profit through the labor 
of the unauthorized aliens. Defendant agrees the 
pecuniary gain from employing unauthorized aliens was at 
least $230,000. 

III 

PENALTIES 

The crime to which defendant is pleading guilty carries the 

25 following penalties: 

26 

27 

28 

A. 

B. 

C. 

A maximum 6 mon~hs i~ p~ison; 

A maximum $3,000.CO fine, per unauthorized alien; 

A maximum 5-year ;::er:n of prooac:.on; 

B 
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'i 
I.-

4 

6 

7 

b 

9 

10 

1 C 
• l 

12 

13 

1 S 

if. 

1 7 

19 

2U 

:n 

2 3 

25 

'1 Ir 

A. 

Possible :neligibi:i~y for ~~rr3 n Federal bene~its; and 

forfeiture tc the United States o~ any co~veyance used in the 
cornr:1iss icn of t ~e c)f f e:1se, any pr-c~e.:--t.Y, ~eal c.:r ~)ersona2., 
tha L is deri •v·ed f r:::im or l t: aceac>l e to :he orcceeds coca ined 
directly or ind:.rect ly frc,m the corn.mission c,f the offens•2, and 
any propercy, ~eal or personal that is used to facilitate the 
comrliss i.r)n of the : f ::ense. 

IV 

DEFENDANT'S WAIVER OF TRIAL RIGHTS 
AND UNDERSTANDING OF CONSEQUENCES 

Cor,tinue t.G plead not q;J:'_l ty a,1d r•c:'quirc t.r:e Gove::T.mer:t to 
prove che elements of the crime beyond a reasonable doubt; 

C. The bSS~stance of counsel at all stages ot ~rial; 

u. Co~fron~ and c~0ss-exa~ine adverse witnesses; 

Testify ano'. prese~1t evi.,:1er1ce a11d t-<J r,2\:-'=' \.1itr:ess~s testify on 
behalf Jf de:2:---.d3r::; an-_1 

Not tes ~if~( ·'Jr-- h,~ ~I~ a::\/ ::.:u "/ '..;-:. ~ c: i :1 f e rences dr a".:;~. frtJt.l the 
failure ~o tes~ifv. 

:=1efend,ar,t krJO'.~JiT"-~Jly .3r~J 1 .::,i_:_·.,111t5.::-il:_,,· ~~·J3.i~/ez:: CL!V yjtJhc.s s.r.d 

aefenses defendanl ma; nave unie= ~he ~xcessive fines c:ause 
o f ~ r1 e E i ~r h ~ r-: l\..:Ti e 7 d Tn e r~ t: t 1:. -:: ~~ e C r1 i t e c:i :: ~ a t e s Cons c .;. tu t ·i •:) n ·:=. c 
the forfei~Jrc o~ pr~per~y in :his ~r0ceed:~g c- 2~; re:at~d 
civil p:rc,r:eedir,q; 3:,ct 

l\ssert nc>','\,' CL c,:: a~•t:-eci, arl_::/ 2.29,:::lJ l=onsti::.~tic,r!ol, statutory, 
regcJa~ory, anc!cr proc~d~ral rigtts 211 defe~ses th~L he may 
r.~-3i/2 L~_nde~· en~, sc.urce cf 1:"::cera_: c-:.•! co!rr:1:_,n l:iV.Jl inc~~din:-:J 
ar1,,~;nq 1__.•L-~_•::::r~, 1:(r.::l~en•:10s -,--- '"~r~-1.r~ .~.f .L_:_rni1:~,3~.___:c/n.S and the 
forn~: and sut:st-=1-ru::,::: :it ~tl:: rn:•~)r-:-r~~-;c,!7r 1r;,_-:~ 1_1cii1:g SF-:•ec.ifi#-aJly 

2 -:~ y ,_ ~ a:... n1 (_, [. :T1 Li l L .L ;:: -1._ 2- :; 1 ~ ~i 1:: :c ~: "i_lf, : _;. c 2 ;~ 'i . 

9 
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1 

2 

3 

V 

DEFENDAN'l' ACKNOWLEDGES NO PRETRIAL RIGHT TO BE 
PROVIDED WITH IMPEACHMENT AND AFFIBMATIVE DEFENSE :INFORMM'ION 

Any informat:.ion establishing the factual innocence of defendant 

4 known to the undersigned prosecutor in this case has been turned over 

5 to defendant. The Government will continue to provide such information 

6 establishing the factual innocence of defendant. 

7 If this case proceeded to trial, the Government would be required 

8 to provide impeachment information for its witnesses. In addition, if 

9 defendant raised an affirmative defense, the Government would be 

10 required to provide information in its possession thaL supports such a 

11 defense. By pleading guilty, defendant will not be provided this 

12 information, if any, and defendant waives any right to this information. 

13 Defendant will not attempt to withdraw the guilty plea or file a 

14 collateral attack on the existence of this information. 

15 VI 

16 DEFENDANT'S REPRESENTATION THAT GUILTY 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

PLEA IS KNOWING AND VOLUNTARY 

Defendant represent:.s that: 

A. 

B. 

Defendant has had a full opportunity to discuss all the facts 
and circlli~stances of chis case with defense counsel and has a 
clear understanding of the charges and the consequences of 
this plea. By pleading guilty, defendant may be giving up, and 
rendered ineligible to receive, valuable gove~nment benefits 
ar:d civic rights, such as the right to vote, the right to 
possess a firearm, the right to hold office, and the right to 
serve on a jury. The conviction in this case may ect 
Defendant to various collateral consequences, including but 
not limited to revocation of probation, parole, or supervised 
release in another case; debarment from government 
contracting; and suspension or revocation of a professional 
license, none of which can serve as grounds to withdraw 
Defendant's guilty plea; 

No one has made any promises or offered any rewards in return 
for this guilty plea, other than those contained in this 
agreement or otherwise disclosed to the court; 

10 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

C. 

D. 

E. 

No one has threatened defendant or defendant's family to 
induce this guilty plea; and, 

Defendant is pleading guilty because defendant is guilty and 
for no other reason. 

The disposition contemplated by this agreement is part of a 
"package" disposition with codefendant KARLI BUXTON (D2). !!_ 
any defenda.nt in the package fai1s to perfo%m or breaches any 
part of their agreement, no defendant can withdraw their 
guilty plea, but the Government is relieved from and not bound 
by any terms in any agreements in the package. 

VII 

AGREEMENT LIMITED TO U.S. A!l'TORNEY'S OFFICE, 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

This plea agreement is lim.:..ted to the United Sta1:es Attorney's 

11 Office for the Southern District of California, and cannot bind any 

12 other authorities in any type of matter, although 1:he Government will 

13 bring this plea agreement to the attention of other authorities if 

14 requested by defendant. 

15 VIII 

16 APPLICABILITY OF SENTENCING GUIDELINES 

17 The sentence imposed will be based on t:.he factors set forth in 

18 18 u.s.c. § 3553(a). Additionally, the United States Sentenc 

19 Guidelines do not apply to a Class B misdemeanor. The Court may 

20 a sentence uo to the maxinum in the statute of conviction. Nothing in 

21 this plea agreement limits tte Government's duty to provide co~plete and 

22 accurate facts co the district court and the U.S. Probation Office. 

23 IX 

24 SENTENCE IS WITHIN SOLE DISCRETION OF JUDGE 

25 This plea agreement is made pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal 

26 Procedure 11 (c) (1) (B). The sen~e~ce is within the sole discretion of 

27 the sentencing judge who may impose the maximum sentence provided by 

28 statute. Tt is uncertain at this time what defendant's sente 

11 
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.L 

1 

l 

1 

23 

24 

1 be. The Government has not made and will not make any representation 

2 as to what sentence defendant will receive. Any estimate of the probable 

3 sentence by defense counsel is not a promise and is not binding on the 

4 Court. Any recommendation made by the Government at sentencing is also 

5 not binding on the Court. If the sentencing judge does not follow any 

6 of the parties' sentencing recommendations, defendant will not withdraw 

7 the plea. 

8 X 

9 PARTIES' SENTENCING RECOMMENDATIONS 

A. 3ENT2NC1NG GUIDEL:NE CALCULAI:ONS 

C. "FACTUAL BASIS" AND "RELEVANT CONDUCT" INFORMATION 

The faces in che ~factual basis" paragraph of this agreement are 

25 true and may be considered as ''relevan-c car.duct" as to the nature and 

26 circumstances of the offense under 18 U.S.C. § 3553 (a) (1). 

27 / / 

28 JI 
12 
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l 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

D. PARTIES' RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING SENTENCING 

The parties jointly agree to recommend that Defendant be sentenced 

to a five-year term of probation. 

E. SPECIAL ASSESSMENT, FINE, AND FORFEITURE 

1. Scecial Assessment 

The parties will joim:ly recornmer:d that Defendant pay a 

special assessment in the amount of $50 for the Class B Misdemeanor 

count of conviction to be paid forthwith at the time of sentencing. 

Special assessments shall be paid through the office of the Clerk of the 

District Court by bank or cashier's check or money order made payable 

11 to the "Clerk, United States District Court.n 

12 

13 

14 

2. Fine 

The parties will jointly recommend that Defendant pay the statutory 

maximum fine of $3,000 for each of the seven aliens named in the 

15 Information, which amounts to a total fine of $21,000. 

16 

7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

3. Forfeiture 

Defendanc consents to the forfeiture allegations in the Information 

and agrees to forfeit to the United States $230,0CO in the form of a 

money judgment against BJS & T ENTERPRISES, INC., dba SAN DIEGO POWDER 

& PROTECTIVE COATINGS. The forfeiture is more fully set forth in the 

attached Forfeiture Addenciu~. 

F. PROBATION 

If the Court imposes a term of probation, !Jefendant will not seek 

24 to reduce or terminate early the term of probation until Defendant has 

25 served at least two-thirds of the term of probation and has fully paid 

26 and satisfied any special assessrner:i:, fine, criminal forfeiture 

7 judgment, and/or restitutio~ judgment, if any. 

28 

13 
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XI 

DEFENDANT WAIVES APPEAL AND COLLATERAL ATTACK 

Jefe~dant waives (gives up: a~l righ~s t~ appeal a~d ~o 

order er fine greace~ than $21,00U. 

imited tc, a~y argcMent th3t the statute co 

1:i crder actJal~y mposod. 

13 XII 

14 BREACH OF THE PLEA AGREEMEN'.r 

15 Defendant and defendant's attorney know the terms of this agreement 

16 and shall raise, before the sentencir:g hea:i:-ing is complete, any claim 

17 that the Government has no~ complied with this agreement. Otherwise, 

18 such claims shall be deemed waived (that is, deliberately not raised 

19 ite awareness that the claim could be raised), cannot later be made 

20 to any court, and if later made to a court, shall constitute a breach 

21 of this agreement. 

22 Defendant breaches ~his agreement lf defendant violates or fails 

23 to perform any obligation under this agreement. The following are non-

2 4 exhaustive examples of acts cons ti tut in,;r a breach: 

26 

27 

28 

A. 

B. 

C. 

failing to plead guilty pursuant to this ag~eement; 

Failing to 
Section X, 

fully accept responsibility 
paragraph B, above; 

Failing to appear in court; 

14 

as established 

SDPC Rep. Initials 
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4 

8 

Q 

10 

11 

12 

13 

lS 

i6 

13 

19 

22 

28 

all 

D. Attempti~g to ~it~draw t~e p~ea; 

F Appea2..i;-1g (Y'lhicr-, ,::;c,.:urs if a nci::ic•.2 of a;;pe::!l is filed) or 
collaterally attac~ing the conviction or sentence in violation 
at Section Xl o~ this plea agreement; 

•.;:1,, En(;aginq 2-r1 add:~2-c:-1al '.:rirrtina~ .::cnc1u.::t fr,::irn i:(1e tlrrle of 
arresc until the time af sentencing; or 

failure to pay the tuJ_ torfeicure ano~nt al 5230,000 in a 

timely manner. 

if defendant breac~e~ :his pLea agreemen:, de~endant will not be 

its obiiga-.:ior:s agreemenL. example, tbe 

than what •~ agreed ~o reccT~enj 2bcve. ~: the Soverrmen: ~ay pursue any 

er not iaefendant aJrees that ar:y 

statute ~olled indefinitely 

not 

rhe fac:t.uctl 

any 

15 
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Defendan:. k:--1~1v·Jir1gly, ,1 .::i l u n tar i l y, 

Kelle ,;::.o ::J.t th•:> Fed'c'ra2. Fules ~-f r::vicience, Rule ; ] { f) 

7 the Feder.al r?,u;_es o: Crir1inal l?::o.::ed-..:ire, a:,j any ether fede.::--cl rule. 

8 

9 

10 

XIII 

CONTENTS AND MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT 

This plea agreement embodies the entire agreement between the 

11 parties and supersedes any other agreement, written or oral. No 

12 modification of this plea agreement shall be effective unless in writing 

13 signed by all parties. 

14 xrv 

15 DEFENDANT AND COUNSEL FULLY UNDERSTAND AGREEMENT 

16 By signing this agreement, defendant certifies that defendant has 

17 read it (or that: it has been read t:o defendant in defendant.' s native 

18 language). Defendant has discussed the terms of this agreement with 

19 defense counsel and fully understands ics meaning and effect. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

xv 

DEFENDAN'l' SATISFIED WITH COUNSEL 

Defendant has consulted with counsel and is satisfied with 

counsel's representation. This ls defendant's independent opinion, and 

defendant's counsel did not advise defendant about what to say in this 

rE,gard. 

II 

II 

16 
SDPC ~ep. Initials \'0 
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1 

2 

3 

xvx 

SUCCESSOR LXAB:rLll'Y 

This plea agreement shall bind Defendant, its subsidiaries, 

4 affiliated entities, assignees, any successor entity, and any other 

5 person or entity that assumes the obligations contained here. No change 

6 in name, change in corporate or individual control, business 

7 reorganization, change in ownership, merger, change of legal status, 

8 sale or purchase of assets, divestiture of assets, or similar action 

9 shall alter Defendant's obligations under the Agreement. Defendant shall 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

not engage in any action to seek to avoid the obligations set forth in 

this Agreement. 

11/17/25 
DATED 

9/27/25 
DATED 

Respectfully submitted, 

ADAM GORDON 
United States Attorney 

MICHAEL A. DESHONG 
HENRY F.B. BESHAR 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 

JREMY WARREN 
Counsel for BJS & T Enterprises, 
Inc. 

IN ADDITION TO THE FOREGOING PROVISIONS TO WHICH 
PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT TBE FACTS C'l'UAL 

r AGREE, I SWEAR UND 
" PARAGRAPH AB 

ARE TRUE. 

DAT$-.21--g.c; 
P .ILIP ,._10 ., 
Chief Ex~(u_ive Officer and 
President of BJS & T Enterprises, 
Inc. 

25 Approved by: 

26 

27 

28 

s/ 1'1atthew J. Sutton 
~iATTHEW J. SUTTON 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 

17 
//')1/ ·' bi 
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1 

2 

25-cr-04519-CAB 

FOF.FEITURE ADDENDUM 

~efendant sis & T EKTER?RISES, INC. dba SAN DIEGO POW~ER & 

3 PROTECTIVE COATINGS ple3 and deferred prosec~tion agreement (the Plea 

4 Agreernenc) includes pay~e~t of $23J,00C USC to be forfeited to the United 

5 States pur-suant to Title 18, C'nit~d States Code, Sect:i.on 982 (a} (6) or 

6 whatever statutory authcrity the United States seeks to use to complete 

7 the forfeiture process(es). Oe:endant understands that forfeiture is 

8 mandatory for the offense to which it is pleading guilty. This Forfeiture 

9 Addendt..:r is incorporated into and part cf Dete:idant' s Plea Agreement, 

10 and the additional terms and warnings below apply. 

ll A. ~enalty. In aadit:.ior, to the penal-:::ies i,, the Plea Agreerrent, 

12 federal law states that defendant must forfeit to the Jnited States any 

13 conveyance used in the c:::irmn_;_ssicn cf the offense, any property, real or 

14 persona 1, th.at is derived frox or t:aceable to the proceeds obtained 

15 directly er i.ndirectly .cro::1 the '.'.:Orrn:ussicr: of the offense, and any 

i 6 property, real or personal t::a t is '..:sed :..:::, f.aci l 1. tate t_he comrni ss ion of 

17 the offense pursuant to ~itle 18, Jn~ted States Cede, Section 982(a) (61. 

lH Defendant. ';ndecsta:ids that fr:~f~itc.:re is a r.:-ianoatory penalty for the 

) 9 offense in tr,is case. 

20 H, Procr<:_y S'~lJj_'=c:: to Fo~feiture. In addition to plead:r.g guilty 

2: to Count 1 of tt1e Irt:ormation, ,:zs set fJ~~.h ir: Section I of t..he P.:.ea 

22 AgrE:ernen::
1 

Defendant a,:-ees tc :o:fe:.t to tt'e United States S23C, OCC 1 

23 which shall be paid to tne ~~ited S::a~es WLt~in tn'cty days of executing 

2~ the plea ~greeffient ana wn~ch shall be inc~udej i~ the judgment in this 

2~, case. Defer.dant ag:-ees ta ps.y t.r..:s forfeiture Judgment by Cd.Sh.Let's 

check payable tc "United Sr.at.es C:us::orr,s an:'1 :3::;rder !='rctection", 

28 EN?E.RPRISES, INC. :Joa SA~, r::E.GC ?'JvJDE8 
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l delivered to Home~and Security Investigations, SAC San Diego, 880 Front 

2 Street, Suite 3200, San Diego, CA 92101 to the attention of Special 

3 Agent Jonatan Ramos. The cashier's check shall be either hand delivered 

4 or via United Parcei Service (UPS) or Federal Express (FedEx} bearing 

5 Defendant's name and the case nurr~er handed directly to either Special 

6 Agents Jonatan N. Ramos or Kevin A. Thomas, during the Deferral Period 

7 as set forth below: 

8 1) $230,000 to be paid within sixty days of Defendant entering 

9 its guilty plea. 

10 C. Bases of Forfeiture. Defendant acknowledges that it engaged in 

11 a pattern and practice of hiring and employing aliens that lacked legal 

12 authorization to work in the United SLates as far back as 2019 through 

13 March 27 of 2025. During this time, Defendant employed dozens of such 

14 aliens, including the six identified in Count 1 of the In format.ion. 

15 Defendant acknowledges that at least two of its agents, acting within 

16 the scope of their authority within Defendant's organization, knowingly 

17 hired and err.ployed such aliens and did sc to benefit Defendant's 

18 organization. Defendant further acknowledges that dozens of aliens were 

19 hired and employed during the commission of this offense and Defendant 

20 realized a financial gain of at least $230,000 from their employment 

21 over the years. Defendant agrees that at least $230,000 USO is property 

22 that constitutes, or is derived from or is traceable to the proceeds 

23 obcained directly or indirectly from this violation of Title 8, United 

24 States Code, Section 1324a(a) (1) (A) and (fl, and subject to forfeiture 

25 to the United States pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 

26 982(a) (6). 

27 D. Immediate Entc of a !='relirninar, Order of Forfeiture. Defendant 

28 consents and agrees to the irn __ t1ediate entry of a 

Forfeiture Addendum SDPC Rep. Initials 
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1 forfeiture upon entry of the guilty plea. Defendant further agrees that 

2 upon entering the plea, forfeiture of the $230,000 will be considered 

3 final as to Defendant. Defendant agrees to i:mmedia tely withdraw any 

4 claims to property directly or indirectly related ~o the criminal conduct 

5 seized in connection with this case in any pending administrative and 

6 civil forfeiture proceeding, and consents to the forfeiture of all 

7 properties seized in connection with this case to the United States. 

8 Defendant agrees to execute any and all documents requested by the United 

9 States to facilitate or complete t:he forfeiture process. Defendant 

10 further agrees not to contest or to assist any other person or entity 

11 in contesting the forfeiture of the property seized in connection with 

12 this case. Defendant: further agrees that if any third-party files a 

13 third-party petition for any of the $230,000 under 21 U.S.C. §853(n), 

14 the Defendant will assist the United States in opposing the petition and 

15 will be responsible for addi~ional forfeiture in the form of a forfeiture 

16 money judgment for the full amount of any third-party petition that is 

17 granted by the Court. If a forfeiture money judgment is entered under 

18 this paragraph, the parties agree it will be (i) subject to immediate 

19 enforcement, and (ii) submitted to the Treasury Offset Program so that 

20 any federal payment or transfer of re-cun-:ed propeliy the Defendant 

21 receives may be offset and applied to the outstanding balance on the 

22 forfeiture. Defendant agrees to use its bes-c efforts to pay any 

23 forfeiture judgment in full as soon as the order is entered. Defendant 

24 will provide the United States with a completed financial statement 

25 within 30 days of execution of the Plea Agreement deta~ling all assets 

26 and liabilities and providing full and complete financial disclosure of 

27 all property it owns or has ar: interest and the locations of such 

28 ies. 

Forfei ure Addendum SDPC Rep. Initials 
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1 

2 

E. Pavment of Forfeiture. Defendant shall pay the 

forthwith within 60 days of the signing of ~he plea agreement. 

$230,000 

Failure 

3 to timely remit payment to United States Customs and Border Protection 

4 is a material breach of the Plea Agreement. 

5 F. Entry of Orders of Forfeiture and Waiver of Notice. Defendant 

6 consents and agrees to the entry of orders of forfeiture for such 

7 property and waives the requirements of Federal Rules of Criminal 

8 Procedure 32. 2 and 43 (a) regarding notice of the forfeiture in the 

9 charging instrumen~, announcement of the forfeiture at sentencing, and 

10 incorporation of the forfeiture in the judgment. Defendant acknowledges 

11 that defendant understands that the forfeiture of assets is part of the 

12 sentence that may be imposed in this case and waives any failure by the 

13 Court to advise defendant of this, pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal 

14 Procedure ll(b) (1) (J), at the t:iine the Court accepts the guilty plea. 

15 G. Waiver of Constitutional and Statutol, Challen)es. Defendant 

16 further agrees to waive all cons~itutional and statutory challenges in 

17 any manner {including direct appeal, habeas corpus, or any other means) 

18 to any forfeiture carried out in accordance with this Plea Agreement and 

19 Forfeiture Addendum on any grounds, including that the forfeiture 

20 constitutes an excessive fine or punishment. Defendant agrees to take 

21 all steps as requested by 1:he United States to pass clear title to 

22 forfeitable assets to the United States, and to testify truthfully in 

23 any judicial forfeiture proceeding. Defendant agrees to ful~y pay the 

24 forfeiture in full prior to the expiration of the Deferral Period. 

2 5 H. Agreement Survives Defendant; No Forfel ture Abatement. Defendant 

26 agrees that the forfeiture provisions of this Plea Agreement are intended 

27 to, and will, survive defendant, notwithstanding the aba~ernent of any 

28 underlying criminal conviction after the execution of 

Forfeiture Addendum SDPC Rep. Initials 
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1 Agree:nen,:. The for:'eit2tili t:y o-: Bny ::_::::1r::iCL.lar propE:rty p!jrsuar:.:: t.o 

2 :.his Plea Agreerrent sl1ali be c12Lerm_:_nee1 as .:.r defer:dant nad survived, 

3 and tha- determination shall be oi~ding upon defendant's heirs, 

4 successors a~d assigns until tte agreed forfeiLu~e. including any agreed 

5 money judgment arr,ount, 1s collected in f·~ll. 

6 I. Substitute Assets/Co1lection of rorfeit'Llre. Defendant 

7 acknowledges and agrees t~at the ~o:rfei::u=e in this case may ~esull in 

8 the en::ry o: a forfeit 1Jre Jurlgrnent. Interesi::. shall accrue on the 

9 fo1·feiLi:ce rr,cE1ey judg::1e:-:t r:::-o:n Lh-2 dat:E: of entry of :he o:::-cier of 

1 I} for feJ t ure impos i nq such f,.:i:r fei -:.ure :r,c1ney j u::::tgITen t and shail '::.ccn.::e 

11 thereon in ac=o~dance with 1i~le lf, Jnited States Code, Sectjon 3612(£1 

12 and Iir:le 28t United State.s ~:c,je, S'::c~tioc 1961 .. Defenda;1t agrees that. 

otr~er United Sta~es 2ode, 

J 5 982 lb) exist. Defe:idan7: aqrees '::.he r:nite,i 3tates r,ay take ar:y and a:1.J 

17 ir.clud.i.c,g, 

;~ () Sect _c,ns 982(bJ 

21 Procedure Act. 

22 II 

23 II 

24 II 

25 II 

26 II 

27 II 

28 II 

Forfeiture Addendum SDPC Rep. Initials \j__ 

Case 3:25-cr-04519-AHG     Document 8     Filed 11/26/25     PageID.30     Page 22 of 23



1 J. Contents and Modification of Agreement. This Forfeiture Addendum 

2 and the Plea Agreement embody the entire agreement between the parties 

3 and supersedes any other agreement, written or oral. No modification of 

4 this plea agreement shall be effective unless in writing signed by all 

5 parties. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

11/17/25 
DATED 

9/27/2025 
DATED 

Forfeiture Addendum 

ADAM GORDON 
United States Attorney 

MICHAEL A. DESHONG ~ lJ' 
HENRY F.B. BESHAR 
Assistant U.S. Attorneys 

;,.~ 
JEREMY WARREN 
Counsel for BJS & T Enterprises, 
Inc. 

p 
c ;e Officer and 
President of BJS & T Enterprises, 
Inc. 
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